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Access to Rights
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------

Strategic Goal 2 :Enhanced access to redress under Irish equality legislation and EU Equal Treatment Directives for people experiencing discrimination.

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------
Objective 1: Pursue Strategic Casework Within the Resources Available To Further The Elimination Of Discrimination By: 

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------
1. Overview of Equality Authority Legal Casework Activity 2011

The Equality Authority’s legal service supports people who have been discriminated against in employment or accessing goods facilities and services. People who contact the Public Information Centre (PIC) will have access to information on the legislation and will be informed of the current strategic enforcement criteria. Cases that appear to come within the current criteria are reviewed and where appropriate, are then assigned to a solicitor. The Solicitor will bring the potential claim to the stage where an application for legal representation will be considered by the Head of Legal services. People may also contact the Equality Authority by letter or email and the same process is initiated on their behalf.
The number of applications, for representation, considered by the Head of Legal Services does not equal the number of contacts considered or processed by the Legal Section. There are many stages involved in addressing and advising on potential complaints before they may reach a more formal case or mediation, which will be supported by the Equality Authority. An application for representation is considered by the Head of Legal Services in only a minority of cases – those that fulfill the strategic enforcement criteria as set down by the Board of the Equality Authority. The equality legislation is designed to facilitate a remedy to discrimination and harassment. In many complaints, the involvement of the Equality Authority will be sufficient to bring about an early resolution of the matter. In a significant number of cases, the claim is resolved or settled to the satisfaction of the claimant and there is no need to proceed with the application for formal legal representation of the claim. On occasion, the claimant will not want to proceed for a number of reasons e.g.
• S/he may be advised that the claim is unlikely to succeed.

• the potential length of time involved in bringing a claim before the Equality Tribunal. 
• the risk of having to pay the legal costs, if a case is lost in a higher Court or on appeal, which is not supported by the Equality Authority.
Legal advice and representation continues to be a key pillar of the Equality Authority’s  core services. The volume of work generated by a case-file can not be accurately reflected in a numerical statistic. Some files remain open for a number of years and are included in annual statistics, depending on the issue and complexity of the case. Some files only require a limited amount of work to provide a solution, while others may proceed as far as the Supreme Court.

A ‘case-file’ is the broad term used to describe any form of legal activity arising from a complaint that is supported by the Equality Authority’s Legal Section. It may involve the Equality Authority contacting and employer or service provider on behalf of a service user, employee or potential employee, and may include:-
• correspondence
• assessing any response or recommending further action in the absence of a response or one which addresses the issues outlined
• formulating, pursuing or closing the potential claim

• reaching a settlement on the client’s behalf

• recommending legal action and preparing a case for hearing/mediation at the Equality Tribunal where the Equality Authority will bear the costs

• acting as an Amicus Curiae in cases of interest

• representing a claimant at the Equality Tribunal’s mediation or investigation services
• considering and pursuing any grounds for the appeal of any decision of the Equality Tribunal to the Labour Court or the Civil Courts.
• representing a claimant at the District Court.
During the year, the Legal Section opened 156 new case-files. By year end 134 case-files had been closed. 25 applications for representation were considered with 23 applications granted.

The number of case-files processed reflects the current resources and capacity of the Equality Authority’s Legal Section. They are not a measure of the extent of discrimination or of the level of demand on the Authority’s services. The types of case-files processed reflect the priorities established by the criteria set down by the Board of the Equality Authority. 
Statistics on Case-File Activity

	
	2010
	2011

	Case-Files progressed by the Equality Authority
	332
	289

	Under the Employment Equality Acts 1998-2011
	150
	132

	Under the Equal Status Acts 2000-2011
	143
	120

	Under the Intoxicating Liquor Act 2003
	39
	37

	New Case-Files opened
	116
	156

	Case-Files Closed
	199
	134

	Applications for Representation granted
	15
	23

	Applications for representation refused
	0
	 2


Q: How many new casefiles were opened in 2010? – add in these comparative figures
2. Employment Equality Acts 1998-2011
In 2011 there were 132 case-files processed under the Employment Equality Acts 1998-2011. Of these, 64 were new files opened in 2011 with the grounds of Disability, Gender, Age and Race accounting for the majority of new case-files. The table below provides a breakdown of the categories of all case-files by ground.

	  Ground
	Total Case-files

	Age
	22

	Civil Status*
	1

	Disability
	41

	Gender
	31

	Mixed
	9

	Outside Scope
	1

	Race
	18

	Religious Belief
	3

	Sexual Orientation
	3

	Traveller
	2

	Victimisation
	1

	Grand Total
	132


* In 2011, the ground of ‘Marital Status’ was changed to include those in Civil Partnerships and was retitled ‘Civil Status’

Q: this language is more pertinent to the ESA – are they the largest employers - Is this an employment stat or analysis??

Government Departments and State Agencies are the largest service provider in the country and this is reflected in our case-files. This constitutes the largest sector where case-files were processed, followed by the Education Sector, ‘Other Services’ (mainly private) Sector and the Health Sector. The table below provides a breakdown of the largest categories of case-files by sector.
	Sectoral Breakdown
	Number of Case-files
	Percentage of Total

	1. Government Departments & State Agencies
	30
	22.73%

	2. Education Sector
	29
	21.97%

	3. Other Services
	25
	18.94%

	4. Health
	12
	9.01%


Working conditions accounted for the largest category of cases followed by Access to Employment and, Dismissal.

The following table provides a breakdown of the largest categories of case-files by type.

	Case-file Type
	Number of Case-files
	Percentage of Total

	1. Working Conditions
	37
	28.03%

	2. Access to Employment
	28
	21.21%

	3. Dismissal
	11
	8.33%


A gender breakdown of the 132 case-files processed under the Employment Equality Acts 1998-2011 is as follows:

	Ground
	Male
	Female
	Transgender
	Files opened by the Equality Authority

	Age
	14
	4
	1
	3

	Civil Status*

	1
	0
	0
	0

	Disability
	24
	13
	0
	4

	Gender
	3
	26
	1
	1

	Mixed
	1
	8
	0
	0

	Outside Scope
	1
	0
	0
	0

	Race
	4
	10
	0
	4

	Religious Belief
	3
	0
	0
	0

	Sexual Orientation
	3
	0
	0
	0

	Traveller
	0
	2
	0
	0

	Victimisation
	0
	1
	0
	0

	Total
	54
	64
	2
	12


* In 2011, the ground of ‘Marital Status’ was changed to include those in Civil Partnerships and was retitled ‘Civil Status’

In 2011 the Equality Authority provided representation under the Employment Equality Acts 1998-2011 in the following:

· 04 Equality Tribunal Decisions 

· 10 Settlements

· 01 Labour Court Determination

The decisions and settlements are reported below.

……………………………………………………………………………………....

2.1
Employment Equality Acts 1998-2008:
Decisions
(I)

Ellen Thorsch v ESB National Grid/EirGrid


Decision No. DEC-2011-060

Ground: Gender

Ms Thorsch, who is legally qualified, commenced employment as a regulatory analyst with the respondent company in 2001. She was on a three year fixed term contract, following which, she was made permanent.  In 2003, her comparator, who was an engineer, commenced employment in the same area as Ms Thorsch.  Ms Thorsch claims that she performed work of equal value with her comparator between the time he was appointed in March 2003 and the time she left the company on 31st August 2006.  The comparator was paid about €11,000 per annum more than the complainant.  Ms Thorsch raised the issue with her employer in 2003 and again in 2005 but with no success.  She had her equal pay complaint heard by the Industrial Council of the company in an attempt to have the matter resolved internally. The Industrial Council offered Ms Thorsch an ex gratia payment of €14,000 in 2007 but she declined to accept this, considering it to be inadequate. In 2006 Ms Thorsch was offered a voluntary severance package and, because she had been suffering from ill health as a result of her work related problems, she accepted the offer.  However, she believes that the package offered was inadequate and would be increased if she succeeded in her equal pay claim.

The complaint was heard by the Equality Tribunal in four sessions between September 2009 and July 2010.   The Equality Officer issued his Decision on 23rd of March 2011.  

The Respondent had denied the claims and had also contended that the complaint had not been brought against the correct Respondent. They contended that Ms Thorsch had worked for the ESB and not ESB National Grid/Eirgrid. They also claimed that the comparator and claimant did not work for the same employer as the comparator was employed by Eirgrid, a company which did not receive its operator’s licence until July 2006. Thirdly, the Respondent claimed that Ms Thorsch had accepted a voluntary severance package in 2006 and in doing so had forfeited any rights to pursue other claims against the company. Similarly the Respondent claimed that Ms Thorsch’s submission of a complaint to the internal procedures of the ESB and the Industrial Council prevented her from referring a complaint under the Employment Equality Acts.

In its Decision of 23rd March 2011, the Equality Tribunal found for the complainant in respect of the four preliminary issues set out above.  The complaint was therefore properly before the Tribunal for adjudication.  The Tribunal however found that the work performed by Ms Thorsch was not of equal value to the work of her comparator. This conclusion was based on a comparison of the job descriptions, tendered by both sides in respect of the complainant and the comparator, as well as statements made by company personnel at a meeting held at the premises of the respondent.  The Equality Officer concluded his investigation and decided that the complainant did not undertake like work with the named comparator and was therefore not entitled to the same rate of remuneration.
(II)

Louise Hannon v First Direct Logistics Ltd.


Decision No. DEC-E2011-066

Ground: Gender and Disability

The complainant is a transgender person who has been diagnosed with Gender Identity disorder. Ms Hannon  had informed her employer of her true identity and her need to live in this identity. She claimed that as a result her working conditions were made so intolerable that she was ultimately constructively dismissed because of her transition from male to female.

The complainant had been employed by the respondent as a Business Development Manager from January 2007. She had previously worked with the company in a self employed capacity for approximately five years.  

When Ms Hannon initially revealed her true identity to the company in October 2006, she intended to resign her position to work in an open environment but was persuaded to remain on.  In December 2006, the complainant sought to clarify when she could begin to change over to her female identity at work and was asked to wait a couple of months to allow a new staff member to settle in.  

Ms Hannon had an appointment to change her name by deed poll on 5th March 2007 and arrived in the office the following day in her true gender using her female identity.  She requested that her email be changed over to her new name.  Ms Hannon was told that she must a) complete her sales over the phone in her male identity, b) that the Operations Manager would meet any clients personally should the need arise and c) that she may have to work using her male identity until Christmas 2007.  Later that month the Operations Manager approached Ms Hannon and expressed concerns about her productivity.  The complainant claims she was asked to revert to her male identity for another three month period.  The Director of the company subsequently agreed that she could return to the office dressed as a woman, but asked that she change into her male identity when seeing clients.  Ms Hannon found this request very difficult to comply with and she dealt with clients over the phone instead.  She did meet with client companies in her male identity on two occasions.  The complainant also claims that she was asked not to use the female toilets.  In April 2007, the Complainant was asked if she would move to the new office where she could work in her female identity, but was asked if she could work from home until such time as the office was set up.  The complainant agreed, as she understood this to be a brief interim period of one month.  

The complainant found it very difficult to work from home as her leads ‘dried up’ when she was out of the office environment.  However, despite requests, the complainant was not allowed to return to the office and was informed that a new person had started and there was no room for her.  On 19th July 2007, the Director contacted her to inform her that he was not happy with her work and that she needed to produce new clients in the next weeks if she wanted to keep her job.  Ms Hannon subsequently met with the Director and requested that she be allowed to return to the office, but her request was refused on the basis that her presence caused a bad atmosphere.  The complainant decided that she had no alternative but to leave her employment at the end of July 2007.

In response to Ms Hannon’s complaint, First Direct Logistics Ltd claimed that they had provided the necessary supports to her to enable her pursue her gender transition.  

The respondent argued that they had met with the complainant and formulated a plan to deal with the transition.  The plan included:

· At an agreed time, the respondents staff would be informed of the complainant’s gender identity disorder

· The complainant would continue to contact current clients as “John Smith” and generate new clients in her new identity.

· The complainant would continue to fulfil her transport duties whilst she remained with the name “John”

· At an agreed time the complainant would stop wearing male clothing.

The respondent claimed that Ms Hannon’s productivity reduced dramatically in early 2007.  The company submitted that despite their efforts to accommodate the complainant, she was depressed and unhappy and failed to make phone calls to generate new business.  The company claimed that in April 2007 it decided that no further sales work would take place in its old premises and that this function would be moved to a dedicated premises upon their completion.  The respondent accepted that it had asked the complainant to work from home, which she had agreed to do, and it had increased her wages as a gesture of good will.  The respondent accepted that the complainant was the only employee asked to work from home, but that this was because she was the only employee working in this area.  The respondent claimed that the complainant’s productivity continued to deteriorate and that she subsequently secured alternative employment at the end of July 2007.

In her conclusion, the Equality Officer stated that it was well established in law that the gender ground protects transgender persons from sex discrimination. She made reference to the European Court of Justice approach in P v S and Cornwall County Council (Case C-13/9).  The Equality Officer also noted that it was accepted by the parties that the complainant, who had been diagnosed with gender identity disorder, had a disability and that the company was on notice of this fact. The Equality Officer stated that transsexualism is a recognised medical condition, which is treated by a combination of hormone therapy, surgery (in some cases) and “real life experience”.  The Equality Officer went on to state that to gain “real life experience, the person must be able to live their life continuously in the other sex, without the need to revert to the birth sex”.  The Equality Officer went on to state that this applied to the work place and that there is an obligation on employers to accommodate such “real life experience”.

The Equality Officer found that the plan formulated by the company to allow the transition from “John Smith” to Louise Hannon was clearly a unilateral approach which had not been fully explored with the complainant.  The Equality Officer was satisfied that requesting Ms Hannon to switch between a male/female identity, whenever the respondent felt the need for it, constituted direct discrimination on the gender and disability grounds.  The Equality Officer was not satisfied that the company had a genuine business need for the complainant to work from home.  She found that had Ms Hannon remained in her male identity, she would not have been requested to work from home.  She concluded that the request to work from home was discriminatory on both the gender and disability grounds.  

The Equality Officer found that the Respondent had little, if any, understanding that the gender transition process was a form of treatment relevant to the complainant’s condition.  She was satisfied that an employer has a duty to obtain enough knowledge about an employee’s disclosed disability, to ensure that their actions do not discriminate against a person whose disability may require the person to behave or act in a certain way.  While the Equality Officer found the complainant did not require reasonable accommodation per se, she did require a workplace that recognised her right to dress and be identified as a female.  The Equality Officer pointed out that the difficulties concerning the complainant’s gender lay entirely with the respondent and that it was apparent that the company presumed that there would be negative consequences, because of the complainant’s female identity.  

The Equality Officer found that the complainant had suffered discriminatory treatment on the grounds of gender and disability.  She found that Ms Hannon received no relevant support from the company and was isolated in her home from late April 2007.  She found that the respondent’s approach amounted to discriminatory dismissal on the gender and disability grounds.  The issue of victimisation was raised in relation to ex-gratia payments but this was not upheld. The Equality Officer awarded redress in the sum of €35, 422.71.  She also ordered the company to pay the complainant interest at the courts’ rate on the award. 

(III)

Gwendolin Mangwi Ngongban-v- Dublin Institute of Technology

Decision No. DEC-E2011-144 
Ground: Race

Ms. Mangwi Ngongban was offered a full time place on a Postgraduate course with a Dublin Institute of Technology (DIT). However they assessed her as an ‘overseas student/non-EU national’ and requested her to pay the sum of €11,000 fees for academic year 2008/2009 .This is the ‘Non-EU’ rate of fees. Ms Mangwi Ngongban has been resident in Ireland for the past 7 years and is in fact the holder of an Irish passport since August 2006.

Ms Mangwi Ngongban made a complaint under the Employment Equality Acts, Vocational Education provisions. In issuing his decision, the Equality Officer found that the course in question does not constitute vocational training in terms of section 12 of the Employment Equality acts and as such, he had no jurisdiction to investigate the substantive aspects of the complaint. This case is currently under Appeal to the Labour Court.

(IV)

Weronica Zanievska v Laurel Lodge Nursing Home



Decision No. DEC-E2011-166

Ground: Race

Ms Zaniewska is a Polish national with very poor English. She started working at the Nursing Home as a care assistant in January 2008. She encountered difficulties with management and her co-workers because of her poor English. She had difficulties communicating with her co-workers. They refused to assist her in learning the job and in some instances, refused her when she asked for help. 

She was called to a disciplinary hearing in July 2008 where allegations and charges were put to her. She discussed the hearing with her husband that evening and they drafted a written response to the hearing. She gave this to her employer the next day but was publically reprimanded about her husband’s involvement in the case.

In August Ms. Zaniewska was reprimanded by a new manager, in relation to a complaint of unsatisfactory service made against her, by the occupant of a certain room. It turned out, on further checking, that the occupant had not referred to Ms Zaniewska. On the 15th August, after completion of her working week, Ms Zaniewska went to the office to find out her work schedule for the next week.  She was told that she was not working there any more and then given an envelope with her cheque and P45.

The case was heard over 3 days in January, February and March 2011. The Equality Officers decision was issued on 7th September 2011. The Equality Officer found that the respondent did discriminate against the complainant in relation to training and in relation to conditions of employment, but that the complainant was not harassed or dismissed in a discriminatory manner. The Equality Officer awarded Ms. Zaniewska €5,000 in compensation for the discriminatory treatment suffered.

The discriminatory dismissal part of the complaint is under Appeal to the Labour Court.
Appeal to Labour Court

(V)

Sharon Brierton v Calor Teoranta



Decision No. EDA1121

Ground: Age

Ms Brierton’s claim for equal pay was heard by the Equality Tribunal in January 2009 and February 2010.  The Tribunal issued a Decision on a preliminary issue on 19th March 2010, finding that there were no grounds, other than age, for the difference in pay between Ms Brierton and her comparator.  This preliminary decision was appealed to the Labour Court by the respondent and the Labour Court sat on the 8th June 2011 to hear the appeal.  The Court informed the parties on the day that it did not propose to hear the appeal, but rather was sending it back to the Equality Tribunal to proceed to a full decision on the substantive case.  A written decision in this regard was requested by the Equality Authority and the determination issued on the 27th June 2011.  The Court stated that the main reasons for its decision were that it would be “inappropriate for it to embark upon such an investigation of these matters, before they are fully considered by the Equality Officer at first instance.”  The Tribunal has been advised of the Decision and further communication from the Tribunal is awaited.

2.2
Employment Equality Acts 1998-2008: 2010
Settlements
(I)

Finbar Burke - v - Boston Scientific, Clonmel, Limited
Ground: Disability

Mr. Burke complained to the Equality Tribunal that following heart surgery in 2005 he was discriminated against by his employers when they refused to give him a salary increase/merit award because of his disability-related absence from work.  He also complained that his annual leave entitlement had been reduced in that year, because of the absence associated with his heart surgery and further that he did not receive accommodation from the company in relation to ongoing medical appointments, relating to his condition.  

The Equality Officer found that Mr. Burke was not entitled to paid time off for medical appointments under his contract and that therefore he was not treated less favourably, than anyone else in his situation, in relation to the loss of pay.  The equal pay claims also failed because the Equality Officer said that there was no comparator without a disability who had been absent for the same period of time. (DEC-E2010-001)

Mr. Burke appealed the decision to the Labour Court with the assistance of the Equality Authority.  The Labour Court sat twice and there was detailed discussion of the complex legal issues involved.  The Court gave certain directions and asked the parties to confer privately in relation to them.  Eventually, a confidential settlement was reached to the satisfaction of all parties. [24th February 2011]

(II)

A Complainant –v- An Employer

Ground: Race

The complainant alleged that he was discriminated against and harassed by the respondent company because he was black.  He also alleged that he was placed on lay off while a newer Irish recruit was kept on.  The complainant lodged a complaint in the Equality Tribunal.

The case was listed for mediation and the Equality Authority granted the complainant representation in that forum.  The matter was resolved at mediation, when a number of terms of settlement were agreed, including the payment of a sum of money.

(III)

A Worker v A Home Care Agency
Ground: Gender

A female complainant, who was sexually harassed by an elderly client, informed her employer, but no steps were taken.  She stopped working for the client and looked for alternative work from her employer.  However, no suitable position was offered.

The complainant lodged a complaint in the Equality Tribunal and contacted the Equality Authority for advice and assistance.

Following correspondence from the Equality Authority, the complainant was offered alternative work and subsequently offered compensation for the time that she was off work.

(IV)

An Employee –v- A Hotel 
Ground: Gender

Complainant was employed with the company as a Reservations and Revenue Manager from April 2006. In 2007 she became pregnant. In the eight month of her pregnancy, the company ‘advertised’ a position with the company that duplicated her duties. The Complainant raised her concerns with the General Manager but was assured that this was a separate job. When she asked if she could apply, she was told that she could, but that he already had someone in mind for the position. In October 2007, the post was filled by a lady who moved from a similar organisation in the UK and whose husband also took up a position in senior management in the hotel, at the same time. On her return to work from maternity leave, the Complainant found that she had no computer or desk from which to work and the staff that had previously reported to her were now reporting to the person in the new position. On 26th May 2008 she was told that her position was being made redundant.

This case went for mediation but failed and was subsequently scheduled for hearing on 20th September 2011. The case was settled at hearing with payment of a substantial sum of money in compensation. Following the agreement between the parties, the complaint was withdrawn.

(V)
A Complainant –v- A School and a Government Department

Ground: Disability

The Complainant who is a teacher alleged that she was discriminated against by the Department which prevented her from returning to work on a part-time basis, following her treatment for cancer.  The Complainant was not in a position to work full-time and part-time or job-sharing was the reasonable accommodation necessary, to allow her to return to work.

Following assistance from the Complainant’s union and the Equality Authority, the matter was resolved when the Department allowed her to work on a part-time basis for the rest of the school year.

(VI)

A Complainant -v- a Travel Company 

Ground: Gender

The Complainant applied, through an agency, for a job with the Company which it had advertised with the agency. The post was being offered at a particular branch of the Company in Dublin. After an interview with the local branch manager on the 4th March 2008, the claimant was offered the position.

On the 6th March 2008, claimant accepted the offer of employment with the Company through the agency. On the 7th March 2008, she received confirmation that her start date would be on the 25th March 2008 and her annual salary had been agreed at €32,000 plus commission.

Prior to her starting the job, the claimant discovered that she was pregnant and on the 11th March 2008 she advised the agency of her condition. They in turn informed the manager of the branch of the Company. On the 14th March 2008 the agency received notice from the Company that the job in the branch was no longer available, as the current job holder had decided to stay. The complainant subsequently discovered that the position was re-advertised through another agency.

Prior to the hearing, a settlement was reached to the satisfaction of all parties. This included payment of a sum of money equivalent to the maximum compensation for access to employment.
(VII)

An Employee. -v- a Retail Company 

Ground: Disability

The complainant worked in a retail company for twelve years. In June 2008 he suffered an epileptic seizure and as a result, broke his finger and needed medical treatment. This happened on the premises of the company. The complainant was out of work for a period of six weeks and upon his return, he was told that he was being given two weeks notice. Upon checking, he discovered that as a result of working there for twelve years, he was entitled to six weeks notice. He was paid full notice and has received his P45 and a reference.

While other members of staff were also let go, comments were passed to the Complainant by his employer, that he was a liability to the job. In addition to this, new members of staff were taken on. Just before the Complainant went on sick leave, a new member of staff was taken on in the store.

The matter was resolved by private settlement and included a substantial payment of compensation.

(VIII)

Regina Cruise v Nail Zone Ltd

Ground: Gender Discrimination (Pregnancy)

Ms Cruise was successful in her case before the Equality Tribunal on 15th October 2009.  The respondents appealed to the Labour Court where the Decision was upheld and the compensation awarded was doubled.  The respondents said they could not afford to pay.  Proceedings were issued for enforcement in the Circuit Court and following three court appearances, a Circuit Court order was granted for enforcement.  The respondents were represented in the Circuit Court and again pleaded inability to pay.  An offer of settlement was made but was not accepted and an Execution Order was then procured from the Circuit Court. A further and substantially increased offer of settlement was then received from the defendants and the matter resolved to the satisfaction of the plaintiff on the 8th July 2011.

(IX)

An Employee. -v- a Hospital
Ground: Race

The Complainant, who worked in a Hospital, lodged a complaint on the race ground in relation to working conditions and access to employment. The complaint was settled prior to the hearing of the case. The Complainant received a monetary sum from the respondent and the complaint was withdrawn.

(X)

A Complainant–v- A Private Company
Ground: Mixed – Gender, Disability & Family Status 

The Complainant works in a private company. In June 2006, she underwent a radical hysterectomy following discovery of a carcinoma of the cervix. As a result she cannot support a pregnancy, although she has healthy ovaries and is otherwise fertile.
She is married, and both she and her husband availed of a surrogacy service in order to achieve the birth of their biological child. They availed of this service in the USA where surrogacy pregnancy/birth is legalised. The surrogate mother carried the baby to term, but in all senses, the baby is the biological and genetic child of the Complainant and her husband, having being created from their gametes. A surrogate mother had to be used because of the complainant’s ‘disability’. 
The Complainant and her husband’s baby was born in January 2011 to the surrogate mother in the USA. Both the Complainant and her husband were registered as the biological parents on the child's birth certificate. The surrogate mother has not been identified on the birth certificate.
The Complainant made an application to her employer for leave, equivalent to adoptive leave. The Equality Authority wrote an explanatory letter to the Company, setting out reasons as to why the respondent might consider granting the Complainant leave, similar to that of maternity / adoptive leave, in respect of the Complainant’s surrogate birth of her baby. The company agreed to offer the Complainant the same entitlements as that of an adoptive mother, even though, legally, it was not required to do so, thus affording the Complainant the same protective work entitlements as that of an adoptive mother on leave. The complainant then withdrew the complaint.

2. Equal Status Acts 2000-2011

In 2011 there were 120 case-files processed under the Equal Status Acts 2000-2011. Of these, 67 were new files opened in 2011 with the grounds of Age, Disability and Race accounting for the majority of new case-files. The table below provides a breakdown of the categories of all case-files by ground.

	Ground
	Total

	Age
	27

	Civil Status*
	2

	Disability
	47

	Gender
	4

	Mixed
	8

	Outside Scope
	5

	Race
	9

	Religious Belief
	4

	Traveller
	14

	Grand Total
	120


* In 2011, the ground of ‘Marital Status’ was changed to include those in Civil Partnerships and was retitled ‘Civil Status’

The Education Sector constituted the largest sector where case-files were processed, followed by the Government Departments and State Agencies Sector and the Financial & Business Services Sector. 

	Sector
	Age
	Civil Status
	Disability
	Gender
	Mixed
	Outside Scope
	Race
	Religious Belief
	Traveller
	Total

	Clubs
	0 
	0 
	0
	4
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	4

	Education
	0 
	0 
	25
	0
	4
	0
	5
	4
	1
	39

	Financial & Business Services
	4
	2
	2
	0
	0
	1
	1
	0
	0
	10

	Government Dept and State Agencies
	18
	0
	7
	0
	2
	1
	2
	0
	7
	37

	Health
	1
	0
	6
	0
	1
	0
	0
	0
	0
	8

	Hotels, Restaurants & Licensed Premises
	0
	0
	2
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	5
	7

	Other Services
	4
	0
	1
	0
	0
	1
	0
	0
	1
	7

	Private Household
	0
	0
	2
	0
	0
	2
	0
	0
	0
	4

	Social Welfare
	0
	0
	0
	0
	1
	0
	1
	0
	0
	2

	Transport, Storage & Communication
	0
	0
	2
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	2

	Total
	27
	2
	47
	4
	8
	5
	9
	4
	14
	120




Within the Disability Ground the largest number of case-files concerned the provision of Education followed by the provision of services by Health Agencies and those relating to Government Departments.

	Disability Ground breakdown
	Number of Case-files
	Percentage of Total

	1. Provision of Education:      Primary           6

                                                Secondary     10

                                                Third level       6
	22
	46.8%

	2. Provision of services by Health Agencies
	7
	14.9%

	3. Government Departments
	7
	14.9%


Case-files relating to Government Departments, Local Authorities, State Agencies, Schools and Third level Institutions accounted for 63.3% (76) of all case-files dealt with under the Equal Status Acts 2000 – 2011. The table below shows a breakdown of the state sector related cases. (Percentages given are of all cases under the Equal status Acts)

	State Sector
	Number of Case-files
	Percentage of Total

	Provision of Education:        Primary        09

                                              Secondary    14

                                              Third level   12
	35
	29.17%

	Provision of services by Health Agencies
	11
	9.17%

	Provision of services by State Agencies
	15
	12.5%

	Government Departments
	8
	6.67%

	Provision of services by Local Authorities
	5
	4.17%

	Provision of services by Social Welfare
	2
	1.67%


The table below shows a complete breakdown by sector of case-files dealt with under the Equal Status Acts 2000 – 2011.

	Sector
	Number of Case-files
	Percentage           of Total

	Clubs
	4 
	3.33%

	Education
	39
	32.5%

	Financial & Business Services
	 10
	8.33%

	Government Departments & State Agencies
	 37
	30.83%

	Health
	 8
	6.66%

	Hotels, Restaurants & Licensed Premises
	 7
	5.83%

	Other Services
	 7
	5.83%

	Private Household
	 4
	3.33%

	Social Welfare
	 2
	1.66%

	Transport, Storage and Communication
	 2
	1.66%


A gender breakdown of the 120 case-files processed under the Equal Status Acts 2000-2011 is as follows:

	Gender
	Male
	Female
	Transgender
	Files opened by the Equality Authority

	Age
	23
	3
	0
	1

	Civil Status*
	2
	0
	0
	0

	Disability
	22
	23
	0
	2

	Gender
	0
	1
	0
	3

	Mixed
	4
	3
	1
	0

	Outside Scope
	1
	3
	0
	1

	Race
	3
	5
	0
	1

	Religious Belief
	1
	2
	0
	1

	Traveller
	9
	5
	0
	0

	Total
	65
	45
	1
	9


* In 2011, the ground of ‘Marital Status’ was changed to include those in Civil Partnerships and was retitled ‘Civil Status’

In 2011, the Equality Authority supported under the Equal Status Acts 2000-2011 the following:

· 03 Equality Tribunal Decisions 

· 10 Settlements

· 01 Court Determination

The decisions and settlements are reported below.

……………………………………………………………………………………....

3.1

Equal Status Acts 2000 – 2011 

Decisions

(I)

Mr. Desmond McGreal -v- Cluid Housing



Decision No. DEC-S2011-004
Ground: Age and Disability
Mr Desmond McGreal is a 73 year old retired bachelor with no dependent relatives or close family. He alleged that he was being harassed, discriminated against and victimised by the respondent, Cluid Housing Association, a charitable organisation that provides purpose built sheltered housing for people with low incomes. In particular it provides a service which enables older people to live independently, privately with dignity, security and fulfilment within their own home for as long as they wish and are able to do so. The Housing Acts do not directly apply to the Association.

Mr McGreal complained  that he has been subjected to ongoing harassment and discrimination by local Estate manager(s) as a result of making various recommendations and complaints during the course of his tenancy. He alleges that instead of having his complaints dealt with in a reasonable manner, the estate management threatened him with notice to quit. They also failed to advise him of, or allow him complete a new tenancy agreement, which would be more favourable to him as a tenant of the property. Several other tenants were so advised and had completed new tenancy agreements which had more favourable conditions

Subsequent to Mr McGreal having made his initial complaint to the Equality Tribunal, and prior to a District Court application for an order for his eviction, Mr McGreal informed the respondent that he had no legal representation to defend the court proceeding and was unable to represent himself due to ongoing health problems. He requested an adjournment and produced documentation from two doctors in support of this request to allow him time (a) to instruct a Solicitor to represent him and (b) to allow him to be physically healthy enough to give evidence in the District Court proceedings. The request for an adjournment was refused by the respondent who then proceeded with their case in the District Court. 
Mr McGreal maintains that he has not breached any of the conditions of his tenancy agreement with the Respondent. He believes that because of an archaic clause in his letting agreement, that he is being punished by the Respondent for having voiced his concerns to the Estate Management over certain issues in the running of the estate. 

The case was heard by the Equality Officer on 1st September and 6th October 2010. Correspondence continued between the parties until 8th  November 2010 when the presentation concluded. The Equality Officers decision was issued on 20th  January 2011. She found against the Complainant in the matter of the complaints alleging harassment and victimisation, but in favour of the Complainant on the allegation of discrimination on the grounds of age. She awarded him the maximum amount allowed under the legislation. She also ordered the company to carry out a review of their policies and procedures to ensure that they are in compliance with the Equal Status Acts.
(II)

Daniel Fitzpatrick v Declan McCaul (Mini Bus Hire)

Decision No. DEC-S2011-026

Ground - Disability

The Equality Tribunal found that Mr Daniel Fitzpatrick, who is blind and a guide dog user, was discriminated against by Mr Declan McCaul, Mini Bus driver when he stopped providing him with transport.  He succeeded in his claim of discrimination on the disability ground.  Mr Fitzpatrick used the mini bus service provided by the respondent to travel from his home in Carrickmacross to the Institute of Technology (IT) in Cavan from September 2007 until 21st November 2008

On 19th November 2008 the complainant was informed that the service was being discontinued and as a result Mr Fitzpatrick arranged for an alternative taxi company to provide transport to the college.  The following day he spoke to the respondent and asked him to notify all the passengers that alternative transport had been arranged for the following Monday.  He had also spoken to one of the other passengers who had not been aware that the service was being discontinued.  

On 24th November the taxi service picked up Mr Fitzpatrick at the first pick up point, but there were no other passengers at any of the other pick up points.  On arriving at Cavan IT, Mr Fitzpatrick was informed that the taxi service would not be able to continue with only one passenger availing of it.  The Complainant, and his assistant at the college, met with his class tutor, who informed them that Mr McCaul was still doing the bus run.  A call was subsequently made to Mr McCaul and they stated they were informed that he would not be providing Mr Fitzpatrick with any further transport.  As a result, Mr Fitzpatrick was unable to attend college for the rest of the week and stayed with a friend from college the following week, until alternative transport was set up by the college.  

Mr McCaul had submitted that there had been a downturn in his business and that the bus run was costing too much.  It was submitted that he consulted with Mr Fitzpatrick about the use of a smaller vehicle for the run and that the Complainant declined and checked out other services instead.  It was submitted that Mr McCaul contacted the College to seek further funding to no avail. It was denied that he told Mr Fitzpatrick he would be discontinuing the service.  In oral evidence, Mr McCaul stated that he would be discontinuing the service and that he informed the other passengers on Friday 21st November about this alternative.  The respondent stated that it was only at this point that the issue of using a smaller vehicle, at a higher cost, was raised by him with the other passengers.  The respondent stated that this was arranged over the weekend and that he did not contact Mr Fitzpatrick as he had his own transport organised.  

Mr Fitzpatrick denied that he had ever been spoken to about continuing the service in a smaller vehicle. He confirmed that he had travelled to college in Mr McCaul’s mother’s car, while Mr McCaul was on holidays.  

Mr McCaul confirmed that he received a telephone call from the college but that he was unable to provide transport for that particular week as his mini bus was being used by his friend. He stated that he would “have something organised” if the college rang back later in the week.  This was denied by both Mr Fitzpatrick and his assistant, who were both present when the call was made.  Mr McCaul also stated that he himself did not have an issue with the guide dog but a number of his passengers had a problem because of the dog smell and dog hairs on the bus.  

In his conclusions, the Equality Officer considered whether the respondent had always intended continuing with the service in a smaller vehicle and had deliberately misinformed the complainant, because he did not want the guide dog on the bus or whether he changed his mind about continuing with the service over the weekend.  

Having considered all the evidence, the Equality Officer did not find that Mr McCaul’s claim that he had changed his mind over the weekend to be credible.  He found the evidence of Mr Fitzpatrick and his assistant to be more compelling.  The Equality Officer was satisfied that the respondent did not intend to withdraw the service at the time and that he had formed this view based on the other passengers telling him that the number of people using the service was dwindling because of the presence of the guide dog.  The Equality Officer found that the respondent had deliberately misinformed the complainant that he was discontinuing the service to prevent his availing of that service because he did not want his guide dog on the bus.  The Equality Officer found that by treating Mr Fitzpatrick in the manner in which he did, because of his guide dog, the respondent discriminated against him.  He found that the Complainant had established a prima facie case of discrimination which the respondent had failed to rebut.  He was also satisfied that the issue of nominal cost did not arise in the case.

In his final comments, the Equality Officer stated that Mr McCaul was concerned at the business he might lose from certain customers, who complained about the smell of the dog.  However, by taking those views on board, the Equality Officer stated that Mr McCaul had failed in his responsibility as a service provider, to comply with the provisions of the Equal Status Acts.  In providing redress, the Equality Officer took into account the fact that Mr Fitzpatrick relied quite heavily on the minibus service and that at least a week of his education had been seriously disrupted and also the extent of the distress that was caused to him by what had happened.  The Equality Officer found that the respondent had discriminated against Mr Fitzpatrick on grounds of his disability and by his failure to provide reasonable accommodation and awarded him the sum of €2,500 for the effects of the discrimination.  

Q: Reference this to the previous case??

(III)

A Complainant –v- Dep. Of Social Protection



Decision No. DEC-S2011-053

Ground; Mixed – Gender, Disability & Family Status 

The Complainant works in a private company. In June 2006 she underwent a radical hysterectomy following discovery of a carcinoma of the cervix. As a result she cannot support a pregnancy, although she has healthy ovaries and is otherwise fertile.
The complainant is married, and together with her husband, availed of a surrogacy service in order to achieve the birth of their biological child. They availed of this service in the USA where surrogacy pregnancy/birth is legalised. The surrogate mother carried the baby to term, but in all senses, the baby is the biological and genetic child of the complainant and her husband, having being created from their gametes. 

A surrogate mother had to be used because of the complainant’s ‘disability’. The complainant and her husband’s baby was born in January 2011 to the surrogate mother in the USA. Both the Complainant and her husband were registered as the biological parents on the child's birth certificate. The surrogate mother has not been identified on the birth certificate.
The Complainant made an application to her employer for leave equivalent to adoptive leave in December 2010. The company agreed to offer the complainant the same entitlements as that of an adoptive mother. However the company does not pay its employees when absent on Maternity or Adoptive leave. In these cases employees would apply to the Dept of Social Protection for the statutory payments.

The Equality Authority contacted the Department on the Complainant’s behalf on the 6th January, outlining the situation and requesting that the Department consider her request for paid benefits, pursuant to the Employment Equality Acts 1998-2008 and the Equal Status Acts 2000 – 2008, based on the fact that she qualified, neither under the Maternity Protection Acts nor the Adoption Protection Acts, but as a Employee and a mother of a young baby. She was applying for equivalent benefits that are provided under the aforementioned Acts for women who have given birth to a child or adopted a child.

The Department replied on 20th January 2011 to state that payment of either Maternity Benefit or Adoptive Leave Benefit is outside the current legislative framework and is therefore not possible as such payment would be ultra vires. It also went on to state that without a declaration of suitability issued by An Board Uchtála, adoptive benefit is not payable.

The Equality Tribunal heard the complaint on 7th October 2011. In a decision issued on 18th November 2011, the Equality Officer found that the definitions as set out by the Oireachtas, to establish a special scheme for Maternity and Adoptive Leave, and currently contained in the statutes, do not recognise the situation that the Complainant finds herself in and in such circumstances the respondent had no option but to turn down the application. The Equality Officer found that the Complainant had not established a prima facie case of discrimination on the gender, family status or disability grounds. This case is currently under appeal to the Circuit Court.

(IV)

Appeal to Circuit Court



Michael O'Brien -v- Kerry County Council
Ground: - Membership of the Travelling Community


Appeal to the Circuit Court, by Kerry County Council, against a decision of an Equality Officer under the Equal Status Acts.

This appeal was lodged, by the respondent, in the Circuit Court against an Equality Officer's decision. The complainant was represented in the Equality Tribunal hearing by Ms. Una O'Neill who is a visiting teacher with the Kerry Travellers Development Project. The case was successful with the discrimination aspect of the claim and failed on the harassment element. The Tribunal Decision of Ms Bernadette Treanor, Equality Officer, determined that the Complainant had not made a case under harassment as defined in Section 11(5) of the Act, nor for victimisation as defined in Section 3(2) (j) of the Act. However, she did find in favour of the Complainant in respect of discrimination under Section 6 of the Act. She awarded maximum compensation together with five recommendations for Kerry County Council to implement.
Mr O’Brien’s primary complaint was that of harassment and victimisation by the Travelling Liaison Officer (TLO) Mr Dan O’Leary, who is employed by Kerry County Council to assist travellers with their housing applications and other requirements. Mr O’Brien alleged that Mr O’Leary made discriminatory comments against him and his family and acted in an inappropriate manner when he called to the Complainant’s home on the 8th October 2004.

The Appeal case before the Circuit Court was a "de novo" hearing and therefore all issues were due to be considered in their entirety. 

The Circuit Court Judge found that:-

1. On the 8th October 2004, following a visit from the Traveller Liaison Officer from Kerry County Council, comments were made by the TLO which the complainant found objectionable. 

2. The complainant was also unhappy because as a Traveller, he had to deal with the TLO. He felt discriminated against because if he was a Member of the Settled Community then he would only deal with the Housing Officer. 

3. The Judge said that he had no doubt in his mind that the words spoken were objectionable and actionable in Tort, but they were not discriminatory against Mr O’Brien, because they did not refer to him in his capacity as a Traveller. 

4. He further went on to say that the ESA 2000 provides assistance, especially in relation to harassment under Section 11 (5) of the Act. The Judge believes that the words used by the TLO were not discriminatory and do not refer to him in the capacity of a Traveller. Therefore the Complainant could not ground an application under the Act, even if these words were said. 

5. In respect of the 2nd ground of complaint, as outlined by the Judge in paragraph 2, he said that the TLO and Kerry County Council were under statutory obligations to provide accommodation needs. There were considerable duties needed, to assess accommodation needs of all persons that applied. It seems necessary to appoint somebody responsible for referring County Council provisions of the Housing Act. In this regard, he was referring to the TLO and Housing Officers who don’t seem to have executive functions but have general duties to administer the provisions of the Housing Act. 

6. As a result of this, it is not objectionable to have a TLO or a system for requests to local authority through the Traveller Liaison Officer. Therefore there was no sustainable action of less favourable treatment and no decision or Act of the local authority is, in itself, challenged.

7. He therefore allowed the Appeal of the Respondent. He made no order as to costs for either side.

3.2

Equal Status Acts 2000 – 2011 

Settlements
(I)

A Complainant v A Third Level Institution
Ground: Gender

A female student lodged a claim of sexual harassment with the Equality Tribunal following the display of sexually explicit and offensive posters in public areas of a Third Level Institution. Representation was granted by the Equality Authority to the complainant in pursuing her claim to the Equality Tribunal.

The claim was settled on the morning of the hearing, with the terms of the settlement remaining confidential.

(II)

A Complainant –v- A Bank

Ground: Disability

The complaint claimed that her son, who has Downs Syndrome, was discriminated against when a bank refused to open an account for him, due to his inability to read or write.  She claimed that the bank also refused to open a joint account for her and her son, for the same reason.

Follow correspondence from the Equality Authority and a subsequent meeting between the Authority, the Complainant and the bank, the matter was resolved.  The bank agreed to open an account for the complainant’s son.  The bank also agreed to lodge an amount of €250 into the account as a goodwill gesture. The complainant subsequently contacted the Equality Authority to confirm that the account has been opened and the money lodged into it.

(III)

4 Complainants –v- A Hotel 
to
(VI)

Ground: Traveller
An Equal Status complaint was made by four complaints, two of whom are members of the Traveller Community. The other two complaints, complained of discrimination “by association” , as they are not Travellers, but were accompanying the other two Complainants. The complaints related to treatment received while staying at the hotel. They were refused service of food and had difficulties with their accommodation and parking. The complaints were scheduled for hearing. Prior to the hearing a settlement was agreed between both parties, with payment of compensation to each of the Complainants. As a result the case was then withdrawn. 

(VII)

2 Fathers (Irish citizens) on behalf of their wives (non-nationals)

To




 –v- 

(VIII)

Child Benefit Section Dept of Social Protection.

Ground: Race

The complainants are both Irish Nationals who are married to non Irish nationals. Both ladies are EU nationals. Both families have children for whom they receive Child Benefit from the Dept of Social Protection. The Child Benefit is paid to the mothers. Because they are not Irish Citizens, they are required to provide a certificate on a quarterly basis, to confirm that their children are still resident in the country. This certification procedure does not apply to "Irish national customers".
They have both been resident and employed in Ireland for over 10 years. Their children are Irish Citizens, as are their husbands. 

They argued that if the payment was made to their husbands, that they would not be subject to the registration requirement or, that if they had taken her husbands’ names, they would not be subject to this registration requirement.

After some correspondence, the Department confirmed that customers, who were married to Irish nationals, would be subject to the same reviews as Irish customers who are employed and living in Ireland. Therefore the Complainants would not receive a quarterly registration certificate from now on. The case was then withdrawn.

(IX)

A Complainant –v- HSE



Ground: Race and Disability
The Claimant alleged that she had been discriminated against and harassed on the ground of her race and disability, by virtue of the way in which she was treated when she applied for Supplementary Welfare Allowance at her local HSE Office. This case was settled prior to the hearing of this matter in the Equality Tribunal, wherein the claimant received a written letter of apology. The case was then withdrawn from the Equality Tribunal. 

(X)

A Complainant v A Training Centre

Ground: Disability

The Complainant commenced a certificate training course in September 2010.  However, after informing the Training Centre of his learning disability a number of weeks later, he found that the attitude towards him changed. He felt his tutor did not know how to handle his learning disability.  The Complainant experienced difficulties in his class from that time forward.

In January 2011, he felt that he had no option but to leave before he had completed the course and taken the examination.  The Complainant contacted the Equality Authority.  Following correspondence and negotiations with the centre, he was offered ‘one to one’ tuition for one and a half hours, two evenings per week, for a couple of months leading up to the examination in June 2011.  Having received the tuition, the complainant sat the exam.

4.
Discriminatory Advertising

The Equality Authority may refer a claim to the Equality Tribunal under section 85(a), where it appears to the Authority that a publication or display is in contravention of section 10 of the Employment Equality Acts 1998-2011. In 2011 there were 4 case-files processed concerning allegations of discriminatory advertising under the Employment Equality Acts 1998-2011. There were no decisions issued relating to discriminatory advertising.

The settlements are reported below.

4.1
Employment Equality Acts 1998-2011
Settlements

(I)

Taxi Company
Ground: Race

The Equality Authority was contacted in relation to an advertisement by a taxi company on twitter which was believed to be discriminatory on the race ground.

In this instance the wording “Has only IRISH Drivers” and “are looking for an experienced base controller, computer skills a must” appeared to indicate an intention to discriminate against potential employees who were not Irish.

The Equality Authority wrote to the company who denied any intention to discriminate. They ‘re-tweeted’ the vacancy for a base controller, stating “all nationalities welcome” to apply.
(II)

Jobs Website
Ground: Age

An advertisement was posted on ‘Loadzajobs.ie’ website, seeking a young, dynamic office manager.  The Equality Authority wrote to Loadzajobs saying the advertisement appeared to discriminate on the age ground and asking them to publish a non discriminatory version of the advertisement.

The company re-advertised the position and forwarded a copy to the Equality Authority.

(III)

A Radio Station 
Ground: Race 

A job advertisement on a website was brought to the attention of the Authority by a member of the public who believed it to be discriminatory on the race ground. The advertisement stated that “native French and German speakers were required for customer service roles” The matter was resolved to our satisfaction when the hosts of the website removed the word ‘native’ from the advertisement.

(IV)

Jobs Website 
Ground: Age

An advertisement was posted on a website by a retail company seeking ‘seniors’ for morning shifts.

The Equality Authority wrote to the retailer stating that the advertisement appeared to discriminate on the age ground and asking them to publish a non discriminatory version of the advertisement.

The retailer re-advertised the position and forwarded a copy of the amended advertisement to the Authority.

4.2 Equal Status Acts 2000-2008

The Equality Authority may refer a claim to the Equality Tribunal under section 23 where it appears to the Authority that a publication or display is in contravention of section 12 of the Equal Status Acts 2000-2008. In 2011 there were no case-files processed concerning allegations of discriminatory advertising under the Equal Status Acts 2000-2011.

5
Intoxicating Liquor Act 2003

In 2011 there were 37 legal case-files dealt with under the Intoxicating Liquor Act 2003. Of these, 25 were new files opened in 2011 with the grounds of Traveller and Sexual Orientation accounting for the majority of new case-files. The table below provides a breakdown of the categories of all case-files by ground.

	Ground
	Total

	Age
	1

	Disability
	9

	Family Status
	2

	Marital Status
	1

	Mixed
	1

	Race
	1

	Sexual Orientation
	6

	Traveller
	16

	Total
	37


All Cases taken under the Intoxicating Liquor Act 2003 were in the Hotels, Restaurants & Licensed premises sector. The table below gives a breakdown of cases by ground within the sector:

	Ground
	1. Nightclubs
	2. Public Houses
	3. Restaurants

	Age
	0
	1
	0

	Disability
	2
	6
	1

	Family Status
	0
	2
	0

	Marital Status
	0
	1
	0

	Mixed
	0
	1
	0

	Race
	0
	1
	0

	Sexual Orientation
	3
	3
	0

	Traveller
	0
	16
	0

	Total
	5
	31
	1


A gender breakdown of the 37 case-files processed under the Intoxicating Liquor Act 2003 is as follows:

	Gender
	Male
	Female

	Age
	1
	0

	Disability
	6
	3

	Family Status
	1
	1

	Marital Status
	1
	0

	Mixed
	0
	1

	Race
	1
	0

	Sexual Orientation
	6
	0

	Traveller
	9
	7

	Total
	25
	12


In 2011 under the Intoxicating Liquor Act 2003 there were:

· 9 Settlements

· 1 Court Determination

The decisions and settlements are reported below.

……………………………………………………………………………………....

5.1
Intoxicating Liquor Act 2003 

Decisions

Q: The language in this summary is a bit dubious – is this a quote from the judgement – ‘appallingly badly’ – ‘lack of cop on’, poor grammar – EA ‘had wrote’… etc?
(I)

Robert McGee –vs- Downey’s Pub

Ground: Disability

The Claimant is a man who has been blind since the age of five years. He is a very independent person who has not allowed his disability to affect his life. He lives on his own and looks after himself and uses a white walking cane to navigate. 

On the night of Sunday the 24th October 2010, Mr McGee and three of his friends were enjoying a drink in the bar of Downey’s Pub. They decided to go into the lounge of the pub, but Mr. McGee was stopped by the doorman, who claimed the lounge was overcrowded and too dangerous for him. Mr McGee believed that he was denied entrance because he was blind and not because the lounge was full. Several witnesses gave evidence to the Court that at 10:30 that night there was plenty of room at tables. Evidence was also given by witnesses to confirm that while Mr McGee was speaking with the doorman several other people entered into the lounge without being stopped. 

Mr McGee returned to the pub on the 28th October 2010 to seek an explanation as to the reason why he was refused access. He asked for service when there and was informed by the barman on duty, that he needed somebody to be with him, before the barman could serve him.

The respondent claimed that no discrimination occurred. The lounge of the public house was very full on the night in question, due to Mary Byrne singing on X-Factor - the TV programme. The respondent denied that any discrimination took place in relation to the second incident. They explained that the refusal of service was due to the barman mistakenly believing that Mr McGee was being accompanied by a friend, who the publican alleges caused trouble on the Sunday night, when in the presence of Mr McGee. 

In her judgement, Judge Mary Collins expressed her concern that Mr McGee would feel discriminated against, because of his disability, because of his very independent lifestyle and the fact that he never allowed his disability to affect his life. In relation to the first incident, he went to the bar and he stated that he was not allowed into the lounge because of his disability. The Judge then referred to the evidence of the bar manager who had told the Court that Mr McGee was not allowed into the lounge because it was too full and was dangerous and was therefore directed to go back into the bar. The Judge found that she could not see how, in view of the evidence given, and the crowds that were viewing the X-Factor programme on TV in the lounge, how this discrimination had occurred against Mr McGee on the ground of his disability. The numbers in the lounge had to be restricted because of health and safety issues and not only was Mr McGee restricted from entering but so were his three friends, none of whom have a disability. Therefore, she found that it was not because of Mr McGee’s disability that he was refused entry into the lounge, but it was because of the large number already present, which restricted the numbers that should have been in there and therefore there was no discrimination.

In relation to the second incident, Judge Collins commented that the publican and his staff dealt with this matter appallingly badly. Although she felt that Mr McGee was very unfairly dealt with on this occasion again she did not feel that it was a discriminatory act against him on the ground of his disability. She expressed the hope that an appropriate apology would issue to Mr McGee from the publican and his staff, in relation to the manner in which he was treated at the second incident, which she expressed showed a lack of cop on.

Finally, Judge Collins noted that the Equality Authority had written to the publican outlining Mr McGee’s complaint to them on the 30th November 2010. She noted that the respondent publican did not respond in writing to the Equality Authority until the 10th February 2011. In her view, the respondent should have responded a lot earlier, as the matter might never have proceeded to a Court hearing, if an adequate and proper response was received from the respondent to the complainant. She noted that the Equality Authority’s statutory role is to legally assist complainants in respect of alleged prohibitive discriminatory conduct. In this case, the Equality Authority had no option but to issue proceedings which led to this Court hearing. She expressed the view that neither party would have been in Court for a full hearing of this action, if the respondent publican had dealt with the matter when he initially received the letter of complaint. The delay in replying left the complainant and the Equality Authority with no option but to proceed to issue proceedings.   

In conclusion Judge Collins dismissed the complainants’ allegation of discrimination against the respondent and made no order as to costs for either party. 

5.2
Intoxicating Liquor Act 2003 

Settlements
(I)

CD -v- A Bar
Ground: Membership of the Traveller community

Claimant contacted the Authority alleging discrimination on the Traveller ground when she was refused a booking for a function room in a licensed premises. When the claimant enquired by telephone as to the availability of the function room, she was advised that the room was available. However, when she went to view the room, she was asked what she required the room for? When she disclosed that it was to celebrate the 25th anniversary of a Traveller Action Group, she was told "we don't take Traveller's" "we had trouble with Travellers last year". 

Following representation from the Authority, a written apology was received from the licensee. The claimant was satisfied with the apology and considered the matter resolved to her satisfaction. 

(II)

CM v An Inn

Ground: Mixed (Race and Gender)

This lady alleged that she had been refused service at the ‘An Inn’ public house. She believed it was because of her race and gender. The Authority contacted the public house on the complainant’s behalf. In their response, ‘An Inn’ refuted the allegation of discrimination but indicated that there may have been a case of mistaken identity. The manager offered to meet Ms M to apologise to her unreservedly and assure her of their finest service in the future. Ms M accepted the offer.

(III)

K H –v- A Night Club 

Ground: Disability

The claimant contacted the Authority alleging discrimination by the management of a Night Club when they refused him entry to the premises on the grounds of his disability. The claimant suffered from a brain tumour which led to his disability. The Authority contacted the management of the night club and informed them of the position. Since then the claimant has experienced no further difficulties gaining access to the Night Club and has been back on many occasions.

(IV)

MB –v- An Inn/Nightclub

Ground: Disability

The claimant suffers from a condition known as Benign Essential Tremor and Raynauds disease which causes her limbs to shake and which can give her the appearance of being intoxicated. She was refused entry on several occasions to the night club. The Authority contacted the night club and informed them of the position. The night club agreed to grant her admission in future, however, Ms B was subsequently refused admission again by the security staff. Following further contact between the Authority and solicitors for the night club, the complaint was resolved with the issue of an apology and a payment by way of compensation.

(V)

A W –v- A Hotel

Ground: Disability

Mr W is registered with the National Council of the Blind and uses the services of a guide dog. Mr W was attending a wedding at the hotel when he was initially refused admission because of the guide dog. After a confrontation with the manager in which Mr W produced his identity card, the manager finally agreed to allow him access. However, by that time both Mr W and his wife were so upset with the treatment they received, that they left. The Authority contacted the hotel and after some correspondence an acceptable settlement was reached prior to the court hearing. Mr W received a written apology and payment of a sum of money in compensation.

(VI)
Ms. ED -v- a Public House 

Ground: Disability

Claimant who has a disability contacted the Authority through her advocate alleging that she had been discriminated against by the management of a public house when they failed to provide reasonable accommodation to her in the provision of disabled toilet access. Following correspondence with the manager of the public house the situation was resolved to the satisfaction of all concerned.

(VII)

Ms. M K -v- a Public House
Ground: Membership of the Traveller community

Claimant contacted the Authority alleging discrimination on the Traveller ground when she was refused service in the Public House. On Sunday March 27, Claimant with her sister and two friends decided to enter the Pub, after seeing a poster outside the premises, advertising music that evening. Immediately on entering, the Claimant’s sister ordered drinks from the bar lady, but was then informed by the same lady that there was a private party and that neither she, nor her friends, were invited. Therefore would not be served. The Claimant states that there were no signs up in the bar to show that there was a private party and indeed there was one table with 14 people in the bar who were not attending any party. The Claimant left the premises immediately without any fuss.

Following representation from the Authority, a written apology was received from solicitors on behalf of the licensee. The Claimant was satisfied with the apology and considered the matter resolved to her satisfaction. 

(VIII)

Ms. K McD -v- a Public House
Ground: Membership of the Traveller community

The Claimant contacted the Authority alleging discrimination on the Traveller ground when she was refused service in the Public House. On Sunday March 27,  the Claimant accompanied by her sister and two friends, decided to enter the Pub after seeing a poster outside the premises, advertising music that evening. Immediately on entering, Ms McD ordered drinks from the bar lady, but was then informed by the same lady that there was a private party and that neither she nor her friends were invited. Therefore she would not be served. Complainant states that there were no signs up in the bar to show that there was a private party and indeed there was one table with 14 people in the bar who were not attending any party. Complainant left the premises immediately without any fuss.

Following representation from the Authority, a written apology was received from solicitors on behalf of the licensee. The claimant was satisfied with the apology and considered the matter resolved to her satisfaction. 

(IX)

Mr. M O'R --v – a Public House 

Ground: Membership of the Traveller community

Mr O’R was refused service at the public house in Nov 2010. He believed that this was because he is a member of the Traveller Community. Following correspondence with the respondent, it emerged that the reason for the refusal was because the licensee believed that Mr O’R had caused trouble on the premises on 15th July 2010 and not because of his membership of the Traveller community. Mr O’R stated that he had been in prison on that date and could not have been the person responsible for any trouble at the public house. He said that he had been served regularly in the pub previously. The EA conveyed this information to the respondent on Mr O’R’s behalf. A copy of this letter was sent to Mr O’R. Mr O’R was advised against proceeding to the District Court on the allegation of discrimination.

6. Applications for Representation.

Any person may apply to the Equality Authority for assistance in taking proceedings under the Employment Equality, Equal Status or Intoxicating Liquor, Acts. The Equality Authority supports cases of strategic importance that fulfill the criteria set down by the Board and published. As a result the Equality Authority is not in a position to provide assistance to everyone who contacts it. Everyone who contacts the Equality Authority for assistance is informed about the criteria, set down by the Board of the Authority, which governs the selection of cases for the provision of legal assistance. They are also told at the outset if it appears that the claim falls outside the criteria. Authorisation is first given by the Head of Section to provide preliminary assistance. The file is assigned to a solicitor at this stage who will enter into correspondence with the alleged respondent. They may subsequently proceed to process the application for substantial assistance i.e. representation. Not all people who contact the Equality Authority and/or who receive preliminary assistance qualify or want to apply for representation. In 2011, preliminary advice and assistance was given in 156 new case-files: 

• 64 under the Employment Equality Acts 1998-2011,

• 67 under the Equal Status Acts 2000-2011,

• 25 under the Intoxicating Liquor Act, 2003.

25 applications for substantial assistance were considered during 2011. 18 under the Employment Equality Acts 1998-2011, 6 under the Equal Status Acts 2000-2011 and 1 under the Intoxicating Liquor Act 2003. 23 applications for assistance were granted. 2 applications were refused.

Breakdown of substantial assistance requested is as follows:

(I) Employment Equality Acts 1998 - 2011

	Ground
	Total

	Gender
	4

	Race
	2

	Disability
	9

	Mixed
	3

	Grand Total
	18


(II) Equal Status Acts 2000 - 2011

	Ground
	Total

	Age
	1

	Disability
	3

	Membership of Traveller Community
	1

	Mixed
	1

	Grand Total
	6


(III) Intoxicating Liquor Act 2003

	Ground
	Total

	Disability
	1

	Grand Total
	1


